



Kansas City, MO American Rescue Plan Act 1st Quarter Project and Expenditure Report

Submitted to:

Department of Treasury 1500 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Washington, D.C. 20220

Submitted By:

Finance Department City of Kansas City, Mo. 414 E. 12th Street, 3rd Floor Kansas City, MO 64106

Point of Contact:

Nancy E. Aguirre Nancy.Aguirre@kcmo.org

Kansas City, MO

1st Quarter Project & Expenditure Report

Table of Contents

General Overview	1
Executive Summary	1
Table of Obligations by Expenditure Category	1
Table of Expenses by Expenditure Category	2
Project Inventory	3
COVID-19 Vaccination	3
COVID-19 Testing	3
COVID-19 Contact Tracing	4
COVID-19 Personal Protective Equipment	5
Other COVID-19 Public Health Expenses	5
Other COVID-19 Public Health Services	6
Starlight Theater	6
Kansas City Zoo	7
Legal Aid of Western Missouri	9
Temporary Housing Services to Address Homelessness	10
Lykins Neighborhood Housing	11
Lykins Neighborhood Homelessness Support Services	12
Housing Trust Fund	12
Project Demographic Distribution	14
Programmatic Data	16



General Overview

Executive Summary

Through the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), Kansas City, Missouri (KCMO) was granted approximately \$194 million, in two payments of \$97.4 million each, to combat the negative effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and revitalize the City equitably.

A community led analysis on the impacts of the pandemic was conducted by experts and community leaders to identify the key areas of need. With these results, ARPA funds were allocated across departments, non-profits, beneficiaries and local businesses to pave the way for a successful recovery, and so the work has begun.

The primary goal of KCMO leadership is to utilize the ARPA funds so that KCMO is in a stronger economic position than it was pre-pandemic. Initial stages include providing all residents access to public health services to keep themselves and their families safe. All the funded projects are outlined and described in the *Project Inventory* section of this report. In addition, all the expenditure and obligation information for Q1 is listed. KCMO has strategies, structures, and procedures in place to accurately track and monitor the impacts of each of these projects. In future quarterly reports, the impact will be displayed, in addition to the information required by the Treasury.

The ARPA Program is providing unprecedented opportunities for leadership to help make KCMO a more inclusive, successful, metropolitan area by aiding local businesses, increasing employment opportunities and providing new opportunities for homeless residents. The funding will keep the people of the City safe far beyond this public health crisis. Those who will be given shelter can re-start their lives and find employment in the local KCMO job market. By investing or leveraging this funding, KCMO can remain a resilient metropolitan area.

Table of Obligations by Expenditure Category

	Category	Cumulative Obligations to date (\$)
1	Public Health	
1.1	COVID-19 Vaccination	\$1,042,711.45
1.2	COVID-19 Testing	\$128,304.82
1.3	COVID-19 Contact Tracing	\$211,705.91
1.5	Personal Protective Equipment	\$26,287.97
1.8	Other COVID-19 Public Health Expenses	\$142,380.75
1.12	Other COVID-19 Public Health Services	\$116,129.92
2	Negative Economic Impacts	
2.10	Aid to Nonprofit Organizations	\$1,170,000.00
3	Services to Disproportionately Impacted Communities	
3.10	Housing Support: Affordable Housing	\$4,211,667.00
3.11	Housing Support: Services for Unhoused Persons	\$2,399,999.99



	Category	Cumulative Obligations to date (\$)
3.12	Housing Support: Other Housing Assistance	\$7,500.00
5	Infrastructure	
5.16	Broadband: "Last Mile" projects	\$500,000.00
6	Revenue Replacement	
6.1	Provision of Government Services	\$72,327,188.00
7	Administrative	
7.1	Administrative Expenses	\$100,000.00
	TOTAL OBLIGATIONS	\$82,383,875.81

Table of Expenses by Expenditure Category

Category		Cumulative expenditures to date (\$)	Amount spent since last Recovery Plan
1			
1.1	COVID-19 Vaccination	\$494,361.60	\$494,361.60
1.2	COVID-19 Testing	\$128,304.82	\$128,304.82
1.3	COVID-19 Tracing	\$211,705.91	\$211,705.91
1.5	Personal Protective Equipment	\$16,123.20	\$16,123.20
1.8 Other COVID-19 Public Health Expenses \$83,730.75 \$83,730.		\$83,730.75	
1.12	1.12 Other Public Health Services \$89,654.76 \$89,654.		\$89,654.76
3	Expenditure Category: Services to Disproportionately Impacted Communities		
3.10	Housing Support: Affordable Housing	\$11,667.00	\$11,667.00
3.11	Housing Support: Services for Unhoused persons	\$2,399,999.99	\$0
3.12	Housing Support: Other Housing Assistance \$3,750.00 \$3,750.00		\$3,750.00
5	5 Infrastructure		
5.16	Broadband: "Last Mile" projects	\$151,250.00	\$151,250.00
6	6 Revenue Replacement		
6.1	Provision of Government Services	\$6,100,000.00	\$6,100,000.00
7	Administrative		
7.1	Administrative Expenses	\$9,112.88	\$9,112.88
	TOTAL EXPENSES \$9,699,660.91 \$7,299,660.92		



Project Inventory

COVID-19 Vaccination

Award Description

These are the costs of vaccinations and vaccination events including the salaries and contracts of event workers as well the costs included in the set-up/wrap-up of the event, supplies, vaccines, syringes, alcohol wipes, and other supplies/equipment.

General Information		
Expenditure Category	EC 1.1	
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent	
DUNS #	073134231	
Location	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108	
Award #	N/A	
Award Date	05/01/2021	
Award Amount	\$2,505,850.00	
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment	
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A	
Primary Place of Performance	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108	
Related Projects (and IDs)	Health1	
PoP Start	05/01/2021	
PoP End	12/31/2024	
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$548,349.85	
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$494,361.60	

COVID-19 Testing

Award Description

Costs in this section are associated with community and employee testing including the salaries and contracts of personnel associated with these efforts as well as the cost of the tests and all medical supplies related to testing. Large outreach testing at community centers, schools and other large venues may also include expenses for transport of equipment if more than one event is occurring on the same day.

General Information	
Expenditure Category	EC 1.2
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent
DUNS #	073134231
Location	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108
Award #	N/A
Award Date	05/01/2021
Award Amount	\$1,245,600.00



Award Payment Method	Direct Payment
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108
Related Projects (and IDs)	Health2
PoP Start	05/01/2021
PoP End	12/31/2024
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$128,304.82
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$128,304.82

COVID-19 Contact Tracing

Award Description

Tracers provide phone support for citizens, schools, day cares, businesses as well as City Departments/employees regarding enforcement, exposure, quarantine, City/CDC guidance and locations for testing. This support is a vital connection for citizens. Providing correct and up-to-date information and contact tracing is critical to containing the spread of coronavirus. Containment, the key strategy in quickly halting an epidemic, requires rapid identification and quarantine of the infected individuals, determination with whom they have had close contact during the incubation period, and decontamination of locations the infected individuals have visited. These costs include the salaries and contracts for personnel, as well as training for all Tracers.

General Information		
Expenditure Category	EC 1.3	
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent	
DUNS #	073134231	
Location	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108	
Award #	N/A	
Award Date	05/01/2021	
Award Amount	\$1,358,950.00	
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment	
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A	
Primary Place of Performance	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108	
Related Projects (and IDs)	Health3	
PoP Start	05/01/2021	
PoP End	12/31/2024	
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$0.00	
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$211,705.91	



COVID-19 Personal Protective Equipment

Award Description

Included in this project is the cost of masks and gloves, as well as other personal protective equipment (PPE), for various community entities such as public testing locations, non-profit organizations and City personnel.

General Information		
Expenditure Category	EC 1.5	
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent	
DUNS #	073134231	
Location	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108	
Award #	N/A	
Award Date	05/01/2021	
Award Amount	\$816,480.00	
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment	
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A	
Primary Place of Performance	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108	
Related Projects (and IDs)	Health4	
PoP Start	05/01/2021	
PoP End	12/31/2024	
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$10,164.77	
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$16,123.20	

Other COVID-19 Public Health Expenses

Award Description - Enforcement

This category obligates funds for a public engagement campaign designed to raise community awareness of COVID-19 preventive measures and increase public trust in City-led vaccination efforts. These costs include the salaries and contracts of investigative/enforcement personnel. Personnel receive and investigate complaints, provide material on COVID-19 from CDC as well as local and State Health Department guidance and regulation. Information on testing and vaccination clinics is also made available. When necessary, forced closure of some locations for failure to comply to safety requirements has been enforced with the priority always being the overall health and safety of the citizens.

General Information	
Expenditure Category	EC 1.8
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent
DUNS #	073134231
Location	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108
Award #	N/A
Award Date	05/01/2021
Award Amount	\$300,000.00



Award Payment Method	Direct Payment
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108
Related Projects (and IDs)	Health5
PoP Start	05/01/2021
PoP End	12/31/2024
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$58,650.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$83,730.75

Other COVID-19 Public Health Services

Award Description

These funds are obligated for a public engagement campaign designed to raise community awareness of COVID-19 preventive measures and increase public trust in the City-led vaccination efforts. Focus is placed on language and reading and comprehension levels to ensure that important information is understandable and relatable to as many citizens as possible.

General Information		
Expenditure Category	EC 1.12	
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent	
DUNS #	073134231	
Location	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108	
Award #	N/A	
Award Date	05/01/2021	
Award Amount	\$229,120.00	
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment	
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A	
Primary Place of Performance	2400 Troost Ave, Kansas City, MO 64108	
Related Projects (and IDs)	Health6	
PoP Start	05/01/2021	
PoP End	12/31/2024	
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$26,475.16	
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$89,654.76	

Starlight Theater

Award Description

Starlight Theatre has had, and continues to have, a deep and lasting impact on Kansas City tourism and development. Since opening its doors in 1950, it has provided the region with exceptional performing arts experiences. The 7,958-seat theatre with historically nearly 300,000



annual attendees, pre-pandemic, and more than 50,000 people impacted by community engagement programs, Starlight has the largest capacity of any nonprofit arts organization in Kansas City to create access to the arts, foster arts advocacy, and develop future audiences with an enduring bond to the arts. In 2020 attendance dropped to a mere 566 for the performance year. Starlight's revenue was not only impacted by the lack of performances and attendance, the downturn in the economy also resulted in a reduction in donations. The ARPA funds provided to Starlight will aid in general repairs and maintenance expenses on the aging facilities.

General Information	
Expenditure Category	EC 2.10
Project Status	Not Started
DUNS #	09755731
Location	4600 Starlight Road, Kansas City, MO 64132
Award #	CASTAR2021
Award Date	12/09/2021
Award Amount	\$156,000
Award Payment Method	Direct Pay
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	4600 Starlight Road, Kansas City, MO 64132
Related Projects (and IDs)	PR1
PoP Start	12/09/2021
PoP End	09/30/2023
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$156,000.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$0

Kansas City Zoo

Award Description

The Kansas City Zoo opened in 1909 and has grown from housing four lions and three monkeys to a 202-acre nature sanctuary that provides education to residents and tourists throughout the Midwest. The Kansas City Zoo, a private non-profit organization, is operated in agreement with the Kansas City, MO, Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners. The Kansas City Zoo averages nearly one million visitors a year. During 2020 the average number of visitors was reduced by approximately 40% due to the downturn in the economy and COVID-19. The ARPA funds provided to the Kansas City Zoo will aid in maintaining staff, assist with maintenance and utility expenses as well as assist with marketing and educational programs focused on increasing attendance.



	General Information
Expenditure Category	EC 2.10
Project Status	Not Started
DUNS #	624333894
Location	6800 Zoo Drive, Kansas City, MO 64132
Award #	FOTZ2021CA
Award Date	12/09/2021
Award Amount	\$780,000.00
Award Payment Method	Direct Pay
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	6800 Zoo Drive, Kansas City, MO 64132
Related Projects (and IDs)	PR2
PoP Start	12/09/2021
PoP End	09/30/2023
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$780,000.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$0

The National World War I Museum and Memorial

Award Description

The National WWI Museum and Memorial is a congressionally designated museum and memorial honoring veterans who served in WWI. In 1919 the Liberty Memorial Association and the citizens of Kansas City raised more than \$2.5 million (equivalent of more than \$35 million today) in just 10 days to honor those involved in that conflict. This museum and memorial is the only official national war memorial outside Washington D.C. and was opened by President Calvin Coolidge in 1926. Unlike other memorials of this stature, it does not receive regular federal or state funding, but rather relies upon earned income through programs like Buy A Walk of Honor Brick, memberships and philanthropic donations of items or dollars to fund the budget. It serves more than 600,000 annual visitors, plus millions of veterans, families, students, and researchers online. Liberty Memorial closed in 1994 to undergo substantial restorations due to severe deterioration and safety concerns. Once again, Kansas Citians rallied for the cause collecting a generous \$102 million for restoration and expansion to include the museum. This great monument truly relies on the generosity of citizens and visitors to maintain the legacy of WWI and its heroes.

The down-turn in the economy during 2020 from the pandemic, in addition to the Liberty Memorial having to close due to COVID-19 restrictions, caused a substantial impact to this great monument. In order to maintain the memorial and the museum there is a minimum staff and maintenance required. This is a National Monument and a point of pride for our great City. The funds provided will assist the museum with maintenance activities, utilities, security, as well as other allowable operational expenses.



	General Information
Expenditure Category	EC 2.10
Project Status	Not Started
DUNS #	171038953
Location	2 Memorial Dr, Kansas City, MO 64108
Award #	CALM2021
Award Date	12/31/2021
Award Amount	\$234,000.00
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	2 Memorial Dr, Kansas City, MO 64108
Related Projects (and IDs)	PR3
PoP Start	12/9/2021
PoP End	9/30/2023
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$234,000.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$0

Legal Aid of Western Missouri

Award Description

Legal Aid of Western Missouri (Legal Aid) provides free civil (non-criminal) legal assistance to people who need it most and can afford it least. Data shows a 48% increase in homeless/unsheltered in Missouri since 2007 according to the National Alliance to End Homelessness. In Kansas City alone, the number is nearly 1,800 unhoused people with around 500 who have no access to shelter of any kind. Without assistance, these numbers will continue to grow with whole families being put out on the street, especially due to the effects of COVID-19 hitting in multiple waves, affecting jobs/businesses. With offices in Kansas City, Joplin, St. Joseph, and Warrensburg, Legal Aid of Western Missouri serves a 40-county area where 295,000 people live in poverty. Legal Aid is governed by a volunteer Board of Trustees. Legal Aid's funding comes from a wide variety of federal, state, and local government sources, foundations, law firms, and other private sources.

General Information		
Expenditure Category	EC 2.10	
Project Status	Not Started	
DUNS #	030710545	
Location	920 Southwest Blvd., Kansas City, MO 64108	
Award #	N/A	
Award Date	N/A	
Award Amount	\$150,000.00	
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment	
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A	



Primary Place of Performance	Kansas City, MO
Related Projects (and IDs)	HSNG1
PoP Start	N/A
PoP End	N/A
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$0
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$0

Temporary Housing Services to Address Homelessness

Award Description

Pallet Community

Data shows a 48% increase in homeless/unsheltered in Missouri since 2007 according to the National Alliance to End Homelessness. In Kansas City alone, the number is nearly 1,800 unhoused people with around 500 who have no access to shelter of any kind. The point of the VERGE Pallet Community is to create an all-in-one "housing first" site where the individuals experiencing homelessness can work on goals and life skills that will begin on preparing them for long term transitional housing programs and long-term permanent housing. Many people are housed before they are ready. VERGE will have all services including the caseworkers onsite 24 hours per day. There is coordination with local nonprofits and charity groups to offer hot meals, food and clothing, dental services, haircuts, and mental health needs. VERGE is an innovative approach to housing for houseless individuals. The strategy of providing intensive wrap around services in a setting will act as stabilizing force until persons are ready for permanent housing.

Transitional Housing Contract

The program serves houseless individuals and families. There are four intended outcomes: 1) provide housing for 90-days for up to 500 houseless individuals by contracting with local hotels, 2) provide case management and other services to individuals/families in the program, 3) identify appropriate transitional or permanent housing options for individuals/families in the program, 4) collaborate with Continuum of Care agencies such as legal entities, medical units, non-profits and other organizations to establish a network that will assist with service delivery for program participants.

General Information	
Expenditure Category	EC 3.11
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent
DUNS#	073134231
Location	414 E. 12th Street, Kansas City, MO 64106
Award #	N/A
Award Date	05/01/2021
Award Amount	\$3,000,000.00



Award Payment Method	Direct Payment
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	414 E. 12 th Street, Kansas City, MO 64106
Related Projects (and IDs)	HSNG2
PoP Start	05/01/2021
PoP End	12/31/2024
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$200,000.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$200,000.00

Lykins Neighborhood Housing

Award Description

Located in Kansas City's Historic Northeast area, Lykins is a vibrantly diverse neighborhood filled with different cultures, languages and circles of friends and families. The Lykins Neighborhood Housing Support Services will utilize the funding to provide affordable housing to low-income residents for marginalized communities in the Historic Northeast Kansas City. Working with almost twenty (20) rehabbers and development groups, the Neighborhood has become its own Master Developer with the goal of improving as many properties as possible, developing new ones, and establishing a diverse mix of family income that reflects the cultural diversity of the neighborhood.

	General Information
Expenditure Category	EC 3.10
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent
DUNS #	117072972
Location	1318 Cleveland Ave., Kansas City, MO 64127
Award #	2021-0064
Award Date	12/20/2021
Award Amount	\$140,000.00
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	Lykins Neighborhood/Kansas City
Related Projects (and IDs)	HSNG3
PoP Start	12/20/2021
PoP End	11/20/2022
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$11,667.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$11,667.00



Lykins Neighborhood Homelessness Support Services

Award Description

Located in Kansas City's Historic Northeast area, Lykins is a vibrantly diverse neighborhood filled with different cultures, languages and circles of friends and families. The Lykins Neighborhood Housing Support Services will utilize the funding to provide affordable housing to low-income residents for marginalized communities in the Historic Northeast Kansas City. The Lykins neighborhood organization will provide outreach to homeless individuals assisting them in obtaining relief payments, government issued ID, access to healthcare, work, and housing. Legal action will be taken to acquire abandoned, blighted, and/or vacant properties to return to rehabbed, good quality housing for low-to-moderate income families.

	General Information
Expenditure Category	EC 3.12
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent
DUNS #	117072972
Location	1318 Cleveland Ave., Kansas City, MO 64127
Award #	2021-0107
Award Date	12/20/2021
Award Amount	\$45,000.00
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	Lykins Neighborhood/Kansas City
Related Projects (and IDs)	HSNG4
PoP Start	12/20/2021
PoP End	11/20/2022
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$3,750.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$3,750.00

Housing Trust Fund

Award Description

The Housing Trust Fund provides grants to states to produce and preserve affordable housing for extremely low- and very low-income households. Per City Council Resolution No. 210249, the City Manager was directed to develop a plan to fund the construction or rehabilitation of affordable housing units and to report such plan to the City Council within 120 days. The City will utilize the \$12,500,000.00 allocation in the Housing Trust Fund for eligible uses to support housing stability programming citywide. These eligible uses include supporting affordable residential and multi-family housing, special needs housing for families, seniors and vulnerable residents, conversion of unused buildings and schools, preservation of housing and community led development. The Housing Trust Fund Program is in development. Kansas City has combined bond funds with the ARPA award in a joint effort to create transitional housing opportunities, and long-term housing assistance for homeless and in-need residents. The goal being to provide over 150 affordable housing units through this portion of the program.



	General Information
Expenditure Category	EC 3.10
Project Status	Not Started
DUNS#	073134231
Location	4400 Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Blvd.
Award #	N/A
Award Date	N/A
Award Amount	\$12,500,000.00
Award Payment Method	N/A
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	Kansas City, MO
Related Projects (and IDs)	HSNG5
PoP Start	N/A
PoP End	N/A
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$4,200,000.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$0

The aSTEAM Village (ASV) 3rd District Broadband Initiative

Award Description

aSTEAM Village, Inc. (ASV) is a Kansas City non-profit organization with a focus on STEAM education for youth and adults. This includes IT and Computer Science certification preparation, and certifications for college readiness, workforce development, and entrepreneurship. aSTEAM Village is a partner in the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) EnVision Centers. The biggest challenge to achieving the success of this project is poverty. Knowing that financial support will not solve systemic poverty, ASV will focus efforts on the 3rd District that it currently serves. The existing digital divide in this district has increased current inequities and punished low-income families during the pandemic. This aSTEAM Village project includes community improvement activities in the form of broadband investment and STEAM education.

	General Information
Expenditure Category	E.C. 5.16
Project Status	Completed less than 50 percent
DUNS #	079794614
Location	1600 Paseo Blvd. Kansas City, MO 64108
Award #	EV2902
Award Date	10/01/2021
Award Amount	\$500,000.00
Award Payment Method	Direct Payment
Expiration Date (if loan)	N/A
Primary Place of Performance	KCMO's 3 rd District



Related Projects (and IDs)	BRDBD1
PoP Start	10/12/2021
PoP End	09/20/2023
Quarterly Obligation Amount	\$500,000.00
Quarterly Expenditure Amount	\$151,250.00

Project Demographic Distribution

While the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic prompted negative outcomes throughout the entire population of Kansas City, MO (KCMO), marginalized communities were impacted at a much greater scale. Many struggled to pay their rent or utilities and a record number of people were under- or unemployed. In March 2020, when the CARES Act was passed, funding was allocated to KCMO through Clay, Jackson, and Platte counties. With that funding, these impacted communities began to receive some help. Although the CARES Act had a significant impact on these populations, more is needed to surpass the damage experienced from the pandemic.

One of the primary goals of the KCMO ARPA award is to use the funding as an opportunity to provide housing, whether temporary or long-term to residents of Kansas City. The City will use \$3,000,000 of these funds to provide temporary housing to the homeless. These funds will directly address an increased need for transitionary shelter that exists during this period of economic uncertainty. Also, the City will deploy \$12,500,000 to the Housing Trust Fund for eligible uses to support housing stability programming citywide. In addition, projects have been funded that will enable those who do not know how to seek shelter or social services obtain the assistance they require. A portion of the KCMO ARPA award will be set aside to provide broadband access to these disadvantaged communities to ensure that they have the right resources and information to succeed within the KCMO community.

All programs targeting marginalized communities will be publicized throughout the City through a variety of mediums. Ongoing partnerships with Legal Aid of Western Missouri, Homesteading Authority, Land Bank, and other Northeast Kansas City neighborhoods will enable the programs to reach a large audience and to achieve the greatest physical and economic impact. Many of these programs will focus on the Historic Northeast City, which has many neighborhoods that will benefit from housing and broadband assistance.

Lykins/Neighborhood Legal Support (NLS)

The Neighborhood Legal Support of Kansas City (NLS) has a deep-routed and trusting relationship with the homeless population in KCMO. They will utilize their previously formed relationships to reach even more people in need throughout the community.

The KCMO ARPA funds are supporting two community development projects lead by NLS that will perform outreach and social services to specific marginalized communities in the area.



Using the social network of the neighborhood homeless community, NLS is able to effectively screen members of the community to determine who is in greatest need and who is most likely to benefit from services. The NLS is in Phase II of the project. At the conclusion of the proposed projects, the NLS has generated many measurable qualitative and quantitative outcomes. It is imperative that the funded programs are easily accessible and publicized to the intended audience. NLS aims to reach communities that typically would not have access to these resources.

Lykins Community Development

Using the Abandoned Housing Act, negotiation with abandoned homes owners, legal action, acquisition, and rehabilitation the NLS works directly with Lykins Neighborhood Association to rehabilitate housing and create more sustainable neighborhoods. The goal is to work with other non-profit organizations to achieve the greatest physical and economic impact for renewal of Lykins and other neighborhoods in Historic Northeast Kansas City. The strategy of the project is to use legal action to acquire abandoned, blighted, and/or vacant lots and properties to return to rehabbed, good quality housing for low-to-moderate income families.

The Lykins Community Development project will host twenty (20) meetings with residents to implement neighborhood stabilization. They will also provide interpreters due to the diversity of the community, so all community members can be heard. They will continue the work they have already begun, but with a greater audience in mind and a foundation of lessons learned.

ASteam Village

Another project that has been undertaken in the interest of promoting equitable outcomes is the aSTEAM Village (ASV) 3rd District Broadband Initiative. This project is centered around engaging the citizens of the 3rd District to generate increased broadband capacity and supplement connectivity resources in underprivileged areas. This ASV project includes community improvement activities in the form of broadband investment that meets the lower middle income (LMI) national objective.

This national objective is defined by Federal rules as an area benefit in which the service area for the investment is primarily residential and the population of the service area is at least 51 percent LMI and as a jobs benefit in which at least 51 percent of the jobs created or retained by the investment are held by or made available to LMI persons. The biggest challenge to achieving success with this project is economic inequality within Kansas City and more specifically the 3rd District that ASV serves.

Just as the health of downtown Kansas City and the region are linked, so are the health of the downtown core and its surrounding neighborhoods. Diverse challenges face downtown neighborhoods including increasing development pressures, affordable housing and displacement concerns, outdated plans, economic distress, problems related to homeless encampments, and inadequate infrastructure. ASV's Broadband project is an effective tool that will grow Kansas City's economy and raise levels of local wealth through enhanced broadband access.



Programmatic Data

As of December 31, 2021, over \$982,000 has been expended in Public Health related Expenditure Categories (EC) on vaccinations, COVID-Tracing and Testing, PPE and other Health-related supplies. Additional funds have been spent on Administrative Expenses (EC 7.1) as well as Revenue Replacement (EC 6.1). Funds have also been invested in Aid to Nonprofit Organizations, Housing Support Services and Broadband Infrastructure (ECs 2.10, 3.11, 3.12 and 5.16). The Transitional Housing Contract has been initiated and has tangible metrics that have been collected to date.

KCMO is also collecting performance metrics for each of these projects to provide a strong, statistical, and evidentiary base for the use of ARPA funds. Such metrics are included for situational awareness. Projects that have yet to be executed will display intended performance metrics as well as some baseline information in lieu of quantitative data. Note that the intended performance metrics are subject to change and may or may not be fully reported on in subsequent reports.

Kansas City Zoo

The Kansas City Zoo is a beloved feature of this great City. The 202-acre was founded in 1909 and is home to more than 1,300 animals and is an accredited member of the Association of Zoos and Aquariums. The Kansas City Zoo has received honors ranging from being voted one of America's best zoos in 2008 to being ranked number one in the nation for "African Animals and Exhibits," and many more. During 2020, the Kansas City Zoo faced several detrimental economic impacts, despite being an outdoor entertainment center, including a loss of nearly 40% in annual attendance with the accompanying revenues.

The funding award with the Kansas City Zoo was signed in January 2022. Metrics will begin collection on the next quarterly report.

Performance Metrics:

- Square footage of habitat improvement
- Number of events held
- Total \$ of Communications Investment
- % of revenue loss that has been recouped
- % of positions that have been re-hired
- Average number of daily attendants at the zoo in FY20/21 (pre-funding) vs FY21/22 (post-funding)
- Growth in revenue

The National World War I Museum and Memorial

The National World War I Museum and Memorial (Liberty Memorial) relies on donations, sales, and visitors to survive. Donations were down due to COVID-19 in 2020, public attendance was down over 70% in addition to a 55% reduction in 2020 revenues alone.



The ARPA funding award with the National World War I Museum and Memorial was signed in January 2022. Metrics will begin reporting on the next quarterly report.

Performance Metrics:

- Total Number of events held
- Total Number of exhibitions improved
- Total number of in person/virtual attendees
- % of revenue loss that has been recouped
- % of positions that have been re-hired
- Average number of daily attendants at the museum in FY20/21 (pre-funding) vs FY21/22 (post-funding)
- Growth in revenue

Starlight

Since opening its doors in 1950, it has provided the region with exceptional performing arts experiences. Starlight has the largest capacity of any nonprofit arts organization in Kansas City to create access to the arts, foster arts advocacy, and develop future audiences with an enduring bond to the arts. Starlight relies on donations and performances to operate.

The ARPA funding award with Starlight Theatre was signed in January 2022. Metrics will begin reporting on the next quarterly report.

Performance Metrics:

- Total Number of events held
- Total number of in person/virtual attendees
- % of revenue loss that has been recouped
- % of positions that have been re-hired
- Average number of daily attendants at the museum in FY20/21 (pre-funding) vs FY21/22 (post-funding)
- Growth in revenue

Temporary Housing Services to Address Homelessness

Performance Metrics:

- Approximately 400 individuals were housed during the 90 days of the program
- 200+ Individuals applied for Independence Housing Authority (IHA) Section 8 housing choice vouchers which became available on 6-28-21 with many participants having follow-up interviews that week and in the following weeks
- 344 Individuals completed housing needs assessment
- 80+ Vulnerability Index Service Prioritization Decision Assistance Prescreen Tool (VI-SPDAT) surveys completed
- 61+ Employed part-time or full-time
- 29+ Exited to housing programs
- 2 healthy baby deliveries due to being at hotel service coordination
- 29+ connected to substance abuse / mental health treatment programs
- 14 life-saving or serious medical interventions including HIV and chronic illness



• 30 acquired vital documents - 60 vital documents (MO/KS Birth certificates, IDs) have been paid for with continued support for participants interested in getting vital documents

Housing Trust Fund

The funding awards for the Housing Trust Fund have not been awarded as of December 31, 2021. Metrics will begin collection when projects have begun.

Performance Metrics:

- Number of people or households receiving eviction prevention services (including legal representation)
- Number of affordable housing units preserved or developed
- Total number of housing purchases enabled
- Total combined value of home purchase assistance
- Total number of neighborhoods covered
- Total number of families impacted
- Total number of individuals assisted with housing solutions

Legal Aid of Western Missouri (Non-Profit)

The funding awards for Legal Aid of Western Missouri have not been awarded as of December 31, 2021. Metrics will begin collection when projects have begun.

Performance Metrics:

- Number of people or households receiving eviction prevention services (including legal representation)
- Number of affordable housing units preserved or developed
- Total number of individuals assisted with legal services
- Total \$ in settlements received using legal assistance
- Total number of lawyers/ law-related staff volunteers
- Hours of volunteer work
- Total number of cases taken to court

The aSTEAM Village (ASV) 3rd District Broadband Initiative

aSTEAM Village, Inc. (ASV) is a Kansas City non-profit organization with a focus on STEAM education for youth and adults. This includes IT and Computer Science certification preparation, and certifications for college readiness, workforce development, and entrepreneurship. aSTEAM Village is a partner in the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) EnVision Centers. The biggest challenge to achieving the success of this project is poverty. Knowing that financial support will not solve systemic poverty, ASV will focus efforts on the 3rd District that it currently serves. The existing digital divide in this district has increased current inequities and punished low-income families during the pandemic. This aSTEAM Village project includes community improvement activities in the form of broadband investment and STEAM education.



Performance Metrics:

- Total number of zip codes covered 64106, 64108, 64127
- Total number of households with new access to broadband Not available yet
- Total number of students with new access to broadband Not available yet

Other Required Programmatic Data:

I. Required Programmatic Data for Infrastructure Projects

8. Revenue Replacement (EC 6.1):

 Restore certain Parks and Recreation Department services and improve the overall financial condition of the Parks and Recreation Fund - \$6,100,000.

J. Required Programmatic Data for Infrastructure Projects

1. All infrastructure projects (EC 5):

• Projected/actual construction start date: October 1, 2021

• Projected/actual initiation of operations date:

January 1, 2022

• Location (for broadband, geospatial location data) (Data contained in the aSV write-up PDF)

1600 Paseo Blvd., KCMO 64108

- Community Network Operations Center (CNOC)
 - **39.09385410847112, -94.56511041550523**
- Incumbent ISP Service Availability at this location
 - o AT&T
 - Up to 1 Mbps \$40.00/mo
 - Fiber unavailable
 - Shop AT&T Bundles (att.com)
 - Google Fiber
 - Not Available at this address
 - Gigabit Internet Service in Kansas City, KS/MO | Google Fiber
 - Spectrum Fiber
 - Business Available
 - up to 200 Mbps \$49.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 400 Mbps \$29.99/mo 24-month contract
 - up to 1 Gbps \$109.99/mo 24-month contract



o Spectrum Holiday High-Speed Internet Deals | Spectrum

609 E. 17th St., KCMO 64108

- Distribution by Air FAA Logistics Company (Community HUB)
 - **39.09318243255473, -94.57611990387144**
- Incumbent ISP Service Availability at this location
 - AT&T Fiber
 - Business Available
 - up to 10 Mbps 2-year contract | pricing by appointment
 - up to 1 Gbps 3-year contract | pricing by appointment
 - o Shop AT&T Bundles (att.com)
 - Google Fiber
 - Business Available
 - 1 Gbps \$250/mo.
 - 250 Mbps \$100/mo.
 - o Gigabit Internet Service in Kansas City, KS/MO | Google Fiber
 - Spectrum Fiber
 - Business Available
 - up to 200 Mbps \$49.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 400 Mbps \$69.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 1 Gbps \$109.99/mo 12-month contract
 - o Spectrum Holiday High-Speed Internet Deals | Spectrum

1601 E. 18th St., KCMO 64108

- Lincoln Building (Community HUB)
 - 39.091141449290234, -94.56311378852502
- Incumbent ISP Service Availability at this location
 - AT&T Fiber
 - Business Available
 - up to 1 Gbps | \$150.00/mo.
 - up to 300 Mbps | \$90.00/mo
 - up to 100 Mbps | \$75.00/mo
 - o Shop AT&T Bundles (att.com)
 - Google Fiber
 - Business Unavailable at Unit 102
 - Business have Google at this address in contradiction to the service availability check
 - o Gigabit Internet Service in Kansas City, KS/MO | Google Fiber
 - Spectrum Fiber
 - Business Available
 - up to 200 Mbps \$49.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 400 Mbps \$69.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 1 Gbps \$109.99/mo 12-month contract
 - o Spectrum Holiday High-Speed Internet Deals | Spectrum

2141 Prospect Ave., KCMO 64127

- KD Academy 24 hr. Child Day Care (Community HUB)
 - 39.085845817955814, -94.55174177317868
- Incumbent ISP Service Availability at this location
 - o AT&T Fiber



- Available
 - up to 1 Gbps 3-year contract | pricing by appointment
 - o Shop AT&T Bundles (att.com)
- Google Fiber
 - Not Available at this address
 - Gigabit Internet Service in Kansas City, KS/MO | Google Fiber
- Spectrum Fiber
 - Business Available
 - up to 200 Mbps \$49.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 400 Mbps \$69.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 1 Gbps \$109.99/mo 12-month contract
 - o Spectrum Holiday High-Speed Internet Deals | Spectrum

1028 Paseo Blvd., KCMO 64106

- Lincoln University Extension
 - **39.100939840019564, -94.56434974046196**
- o Incumbent ISP Service Availability at this location
 - AT&T Fiber
 - Business Available
 - up to 6 Mbps | \$40.00/mo.
 - o Shop AT&T Bundles (att.com)
 - Google Fiber
 - Not Available at this address
 - Gigabit Internet Service in Kansas City, KS/MO | Google Fiber
 - Spectrum Fiber
 - Business Available
 - up to 200 Mbps \$49.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 400 Mbps \$69.99/mo 12-month contract
 - up to 1 Gbps \$109.99/mo 12-month contract
 - o Spectrum Holiday High-Speed Internet Deals | Spectrum

3. Broadband projects (EC 5.16-5.17):

1600 Paseo Blvd., KCMO 64108 Digital KC NOW - aSTEAM Village Inc

- Community Network Operations Center (CNOC)
 - 1 Gbps Connectivity (**scalable capacity 10 Gbps)
 - Online and Active as of Oct. 4, 2021
 - Circuit serves approximately 250 students (M-Sat)

609 E. 17th St., KCMO 64108 Distribution by Air (DBA) | Homepage (dbaco.com)

- Distribution by Air FAA Logistics Company (Community HUB)
 - 1 Gbps Connectivity
 - Point-to-Point to CNOC (fiber)
 - Build Complete 11/29/21 and comes online 12/9/21
 - Point-to-Point and Point-to-MultiPoint Wireless units will be placed on the roof to extend the network N, S, E and West
 - Strategic location is west of 71 Hwy that splits the western 3rd District

1601 E. 18th St., KCMO 64108

Lincoln Building (Community HUB) <u>About | Historic Lincoln Building</u>



- 500 Mbps Connectivity (*** scalable capacity to 1 Gbps)
 - Point-to-Point to CNOC (fiber)
 - Online and Active as of November 15, 2021
- Point-to-Point and Point-to-MultiPoint Wireless units will be placed on the roof to extend the network N, S, E and West
 - Community Wi-Fi for the Historic Jazz District Business, Residents and Events
 - About the Historic Jazz District https://aahtkc.org

2141 Prospect Ave., KCMO 64127 KD-KC | LOVE. EDUCATION. NUTRITION. Kansas City, MO Childcare (kdacademykc.com)

- KD Academy 24 hr. Child Day Care (Community HUB)
 - 1 Gbps Connectivity
 - Point-to-Point to CNOC (fiber)
 - Build 70% Complete as of 12/7/21 and comes online 12/20/21
 - Point-to-Point and Point-to-MultiPoint Wireless units will be placed on the roof to extend the network N, S, E and West

1028 Paseo Blvd., KCMO 64106

- o Lincoln University Extension Kansas City Urban Impact Center Lincoln University
 - 1 Gbps Connectivity
 - Point to Point to CNOC (fiber)
 - Circuit Ordered and est. Date of the Start of the Build-Out 12/29/21
 - Point-to-Point and Point-to-MultiPoint Wireless units will be placed on the roof to extend the network N, S, E and West

Technology to be deployed

(Data contained in the aSV write-up PDF)

- o 2-Fiber Optical SMF
- Fixed-Wireless

• Miles of fiber, • Cost per mile, • Cost per passing

- o Not Applicable because we utilized existing dark fiber laid over 10 years ago
- No Install Fee charged by vendor for these circuits

• Number of households (broken out by households on Tribal lands and those not on Tribal lands) projected to have increased access to broadband

Source – USPS https://www.unitedstateszipcodes.org/

Source – AARP Livability Index https://livabilityindex.aarp.org/

- Housing
 - Affordability and access
- Neighborhood
 - Access to life, work, and play
- Transportation
 - Safe and convenient options
- Environment
 - Clean air and water
- Health
 - Prevention, access and quality



- Engagement
 - Civic and social involvement
- Opportunity
 - Inclusion and possibilities

1600 Paseo Blvd., KCMO 64108

- Community Network Operations Center (CNOC)
 - Population 7,584
 - Population Density 2,088 people per sq. mi.
 - Housing Units 4,484
 - Occupied Housing Units 3,747
 - Median Household Income \$35,521
 - Land Area 3.63 sq. mi
 - Median Home Value \$160,400
 - AARP Livability Index (0 to 100)
 - Overall Livability Score 51

609 E. 17th St., KCMO 64108 (***Not in KCMO 3rd Congressional District)

- o Distribution by Air FAA Logistics Company (Community HUB)
 - Population 7,584
 - Population Density 2,088 people per sq. mi.
 - Housing Units 4,484
 - Occupied Housing Units 3,747
 - Median Household Income \$35,521
 - Land Area 3.63 sq. mi
 - Median Home Value \$160,400
 - AARP Livability Index (0 to 100)
 - Overall Livability Score 50

1601 E. 18th St., KCMO 64108

- Lincoln Building (Community HUB)
 - Population 7,584
 - Population Density 2,088 people per sq. mi.
 - Housing Units 4,484
 - Occupied Housing Units 3,747
 - Median Household Income \$35,521
 - Land Area 3.63 sq. mi
 - Median Home Value \$160,400
 - AARP Livability Index (0 to 100)
 - Overall Livability Score 50

2141 Prospect Ave., KCMO 64127

- o KD Academy 24 hr. Child Day Care (Community HUB)
 - Population 17,332
 - Population Density 4,142 people per sq. mi.
 - Housing Units 8,464
 - Occupied Housing Units 6,410
 - Median Household Income \$21,494



- Land Area 4.18 sq. mi
- Median Home Value \$54,800
- AARP Livability Index (0 to 100)
 - Overall Livability Score 45

1028 Paseo Blvd., KCMO 64106

- o Lincoln University Extension
 - Population 7,701
 - Population Density 5,000 people per sq. mi.
 - Housing Units 3,669
 - Occupied Housing Units 3,248
 - Median Household Income \$25,649
 - Land Area 1.54 sq. mi
 - Median Home Value \$172,300
 - AARP Livability Index (0 to 100)
 - Overall Livability Score 46
- Number of institutions and businesses (broken out by institutions on Tribal lands and those not on Tribal lands) projected to have increased access
 - **64106**
 - o 612 Businesses
 - 2019 MARC Report <u>Employment & Business Metro Dataline</u> (marc.org)
 - 64108
 - o 1,102 Businesses
 - 2019 MARC Report <u>Employment & Business Metro Dataline</u> (marc.org)
 - 64127
 - o 295 Businesses
 - 2019 MARC Report <u>Employment & Business Metro Dataline</u> (marc.org)

K. Required Programmatic Data for Administration

• All Administrative Expenses (EC 7.1):

The position of Grants Management Coordinator was filled on November 22, 2021, to assist primarily in managing the ARPA program. This position will be charged to the grant.